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DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 
 
The City of Houston Human Resources Department (“the City”) is soliciting proposals from qualified professionals 
specializing in Verification of Employment services. 
 
Please review the Scope of Work/Services below.  If you should you have additional questions regarding the RFP 
or believe that your company/organization meets the minimum requirements as outlined in the Scope of 
Work/Services of this RFP; please submit your response to Richard Morris, via one of the following methods listed 
below by 11:00 a.m. CST, Tuesday, May 27, 2014: 
 
E-mail (Preferred Method):    richard.morris@houstontx.gov 
Fax:   (832) 393-8759 

 
Mail:   City of Houston 

Strategic Purchasing Division (Suite 500. Room B506) 
 901 Bagby Street 
 Houston, TX 77002 
 

SCOPE OF WORK/SERVICES 
 
INTRODUCTION. 
 
The City of Houston is seeking to contract with Selected Vendor to handle employment verifications for the City 
of Houston employees (current and former), and would transmit data from payroll files to Selected Vendor each 
payroll run. The information allows Selected Vendor to then provide to verifiers: 
 

• Name 
• Most recent hire date 
• Termination date (if no longer employed) 
• Total time with company 
• Job title 

 
Additional information provided for income verifications: 
 

• Rate of pay 
• Gross earning for current year to date, including base pay, overtime, bonuses, and commissions 
• Gross earning for last year and two years past, including base pay, overtime, bonuses, and commissions 
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BACKGROUND. 
 
The Personnel Records Division spends multiple hours responding to verbal and written request for employment 
and salary verification for approximately 21,000+ active employees and 65,000 inactive employees. Consulting 
services are desired to evaluate the benefit to the City through continuous outsourcing of this function and 
identification of potential vendors. 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
City of Houston Interests. 

 
 The City of Houston provides employment and income data (“Data”) to Selected Vendor on a regular 
basis and Selected Vendor provides employment and/or income verifications to Verifiers. City of Houston 
acknowledges that the ability of Selected Vendor to provide accurate information is dependent upon accurate 
Data from City of Houston. Selected Vendor shall assure due diligence is taken to protect City of Houston Data in 
accordance with good industry practices. The Selected Vendor may use City of Houston’s name and logo in 
routine communications Selected Vendor undertakes to Verifiers, to inform Verifiers of participation by City of 
Houston in the Service in order to serve City of Houston’s more efficiently and to reduce calls to City of Houston 
from Verifiers.  

Employee Interests.  
 Employees of City of Houston may need verification of employment and/or income to qualify for home 
loans, automobile loans, chattel loans, and social services programs, confirm immigration status or obtain 
worker’s compensation payments. Selected Vendor provides the necessary verification on a timely basis. 

Verifiers Interests. 
 Verifiers may obtain different amounts of information and in different manner dependent on the nature of 
the Verifier and the nature of the relationship with the Selected Vendor. Verifiers may be commercial verifiers 
such as mortgage lenders, pre-employment screeners, automobile lenders, property managers, parties to 
consumer lending and others; social service agencies seeking to qualify an employee for social service 
assistance; child support agencies providing support for dependent children; immigration officials needing 
confirmation of employment; insurers; law enforcement agencies; or other Verifiers with a need to verify 
employment or income. 

 Selected Vendor shall provide verifications to serve the interests of City of Houston, employees of City of 
Houston and Verifiers by providing verifications (i) to relieve the employer of the burden of employment and 
income verification obligations as often as practicable; (ii) where the employee has applied for a benefit (such as 
a job application, qualification for social services assistance or a loan application) or has obtained a benefit and 
the Verifier is seeking to determine whether the employee is qualified to receive the benefit or is seeking to 
enforce obligations undertaken by the employee in connection with the benefit; (iii) where the employee is 
obligated by Federal, state or local law to provide the verification information to the Verifier; and (iv) to provide 
demographic studies which shall not reveal identifying information to any individual employee. 
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Fair Credit Reporting Act. 
 In order to enhance the protections available to employees of the City of Houston, with respect to the 
privacy and accuracy of the Data supplied by the Service. Selected Vendor shall incorporate features of the Fair 
Credit Reporting act (the “FCRA”) in connection with the Service.  

Confidentiality. 

 In order to enhance the protections available to employees of City of Houston, Selected Vendor shall 
comply with confidentiality requirements of the City. 

Data Quality. 

 City of Houston acknowledges that the ability of the Selected Vendor to provide accurate information 
is dependent upon receipt of accurate Data from Selected Vendor. City of Houston shall provide current and 
accurate Data necessary for Selected Vendor to provide the Services. City of Houston agrees to provide 
such Data to Selected Vendor in the Selected Vendor format within a mutually agreeable timeframe and to 
promptly correct and update Data. City of Houston further agrees to test and validate the accuracy of the 
Data on a mutually agreeable frequency using paper-based or electronic Data validation reports provided by 
Selected Vendor. Both City of Houston and Selected Vendor shall agree to work together to identify and 
resolve all identified Data errors within two (2) of City of Houston’s pay periods. City of Houston agrees that 
any action required of Selected Vendor to correct the Data for City of Houston shall result at no cost to City 
of Houston. 

Verification Service Fees. 

 SELECTED VENDOR WAIVES ALL VERIFICATION SERVICEF EES, AND ANY OTHER FEE SET OUT 
IN THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES, REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF ACTIVE CITY EMPLOYEES 
HEREUNDER, FOR THE INITIAL TERM OF THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

Employment File Transmission Fee. 

 The fee to be paid to the Selected Vendor for the transmission of employee files via Electronic 
transmission shall be at no charge. 

Potential revenue back to the City. 
Proposers must submit a detailed plan for the reimbursement of any potential revenue back to the City. In 
evaluating responses to this RFP, the City will consider responses to this item as a priority. 

 
PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
 
 Implementation of the Selected Vendor’s solution will occur within 3 weeks of execution of any contract 
resulting from this RFP. This includes technical file review, file development, load/format testing, testing for 
accuracy and services necessary to implement the solution, training, and any support, other than on-going 
maintenance services. 
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ACCEPTANCE TESTING 
 
 Identification of specific procedures or criteria that need to be applied to test the end product or ensure that it 
functions in accordance with established data interface specifications or technical requirements or verify the integrity 
of the deliverable. 
 
ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA 
 
 Acceptance Criteria for this implementation will be based on the City of Houston PO acceptance language.  
Each deliverable created under this Statement of Work will be delivered to the Project Manager/Contract Manager 
with a Deliverable Acceptance Receipt.  This receipt will describe the deliverable and provide the Project Manager 
with space to indicate if the deliverable is accepted, rejected, or conditionally accepted. Conditionally Accepted 
deliverables will contain a list of deficiencies that need to be corrected in order for the deliverable to be accepted by 
the Project Manager. 
 

 TRAVEL 
 
Human Resources does not does not cover travel expenses. 
 

 LOCAL MINORITY/WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION 
 
No MWBE Goal% required. 

 
 DOCUMENTS TO BE SUBMITTED. 

Selected Vendor shall submit to City of Houston as follows: 
• General Contact Information 
• Background Information 
• References  

      Three (3) Active Clients 
      Five (5) largest employer clients 
      Three (3) Public sector clients 
      Three (3) Former Clients 
 
       

 4 



 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

S30-100319 
NOTICE OF INFORMAL REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSAL 

STRATEGIC 
PURCHASING DIVISION 

901 Bagby Street, 
Concourse Level 

Houston, Texas 77002 
(832) 393-8725 

(832) 393-8758 Fax 
 
                                                                                   CITY OF HOUSTON 
                                                                                      MAY 2014 RFP 
 

 General Information 
Questions 

 General Information 
Responses 

1 RFP contact name 1  
2 Contact title 2  
3 Contact address 3  
4 Contact state 4  
5 Contact zip code 5  
6 Contact phone number 6  
7 Contact extension 7  
8 Contact fax 8  
9 Contact email 9  
10 Home page address 10  

 Background Information 
Questions 

 Background Information 
Responses 

11 Identify the ownership structure of your 
organization. 

11  

12 How long has your organization been in 
business? 

12  

13 Where is your organization 
headquartered? 

13  

14 Does your company have staff and 
facilities located in the Houston area? If 
so, describe. Will additional staff and/or 
facilities be necessary to complete this 
engagement? Where are they located? 

14  

15 Please identify the individual(s) who will 
be assigned responsibility for the City’s 
account and include a resume of his/her 
experience and qualifications. 

15  

16 Are you licensed to do business in the 
State of Texas? Do you now have all of 
the necessary licenses and registrations 
to perform the activities proposed? If no, 
explain fully. 

16  

17 Is your company affiliated with another 
company? If so, describe the affiliate 
relationship. 

17  
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18 Do you anticipate any mergers, transfers 
of company ownership, or departures of 
key personnel that might affect your 
ability to carry out your contract with the 
City? 

18  

19 Is your firm involved with any current 
litigation against or from the City? If yes, 
please describe. 

19  

20 What former City employees (executive 
level) are working for your firm for how 
long? 

20  

21 Does your company or any individual, 
owning 10% or more; owe any delinquent 
taxes/fees to the City? 

21  

 References 
Questions 

 References 
Responses 

23 List your five largest employer  
Clients. 

23  

  24 - 
26 

Active Clients (list three) 
a. Organization name 
b. Size of organization (by number of 
employees) 
c. Contact name and title 
d. Address 
e. Phone number 
f. Effective date of contract 
g. Description of services provided. 

  24 - 
26 

 

   27 
- 29 

List three public sector clients 
a. Organization name 
b. Size of organization (by number of 
employees) 
c. Contact name and title 
d. Address 
e. Phone number 
f. Effective date of contract 
g. Description of services provided. 

  27 - 
29 
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  30 - 

33 
Former Clients (list three) 
a. Organization name 
b. Size of organization (by number of 
employees) 
c. Contact name and title 
d. Address 
e. Phone number 
f. Effective date of contract 
g. Description of services provided. 

   30 –  
33 

 

 Miscellaneous 
Questions: 

 Miscellaneous 
Responses: 

34 Describe your firm’s experience in 
outsourcing records management 
operations, specifically, wage and 
employment verification. 
                      a. Describe your proposal 
                           for the City of Houston. 
                      b. Provide a timeline from  
                           proposal through  
                           implementation. 

     34  
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Questions for Vendor References 
 

1. Do you use Vendor. for Verification of Employment? If yes, what has been your experience? 

2. Do you use Vendor for Verification of Income? If yes, what has been your experience? 

3. Have you tried to complete verifications and Vendor did not have the client information? If yes, how often has 
this happened? 

4. Briefly describe the positives / negatives of working with the Vendor. Has it been a time/cost saving 
investment? 

5. Vendor has 24/7 service. Have you ever had a problem contacting them either through the Internet or using 
the 1-800 number? 

6. When using the 1-800 number, after three attempted errors the verifier is automatically sent to a Customer 
Service Representative, have you ever had this happen? 

7. The Vendor brochure states verifications are completed within a couple of minutes, has this been your 
experience? 

8. Did you request separate “Employer Codes” for departments in your company or do you use one Employer 
Code? If you have separate Employer Codes, what has been your experience? 

9. Do you use Web Manager? If yes, what features do you use? Do you run the monthly usage reports? If yes, 
do you try to tie this back to your reference numbers? 

10. How long have you worked with Vendor? 

11. Was there anything that happened that came as a surprise? 

12. Do you send an interface to the Vendor after each pay period? If yes, what has been your experience?  

13. On a scale of 1 to 10, with 10 being the highest, how would you rate Vendor in meeting your needs? 
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